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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnership.the
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “ComrBbiares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “Prefe8tock” or “Preferred Shares,
the Operating Partnership’s common partnershipreéste as “Common Units,” the Operating Partnershigreferred partnership interests
“Preferred Units” and irservice properties (excluding rental residentidts)rto which the Company and/or the Operating ieaghip have titl
and 100.0% ownership rights as the “Wholly Ownegjprties.” References to “we” and “ourfean the Company and the Operating Partne
collectively, unless the context indicates otheewis

The partnership agreement provides that the Opgr&artnership will assume and pay when due, orheise the Company for payment
all costs and expenses relating to the ownershibogrerations of, or for the benefit of, the OpemgtPartnership. The partnership agreel
further provides that all expenses of the Compaaydaemed to be incurred for the benefit of ther@jreg Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaApril 25, 2011, the latest practicable datemto the filing of this Quarterly Report.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee amounts)

Assets:

Real estate assets, at c(
Land
Buildings and tenant improvemer
Development in proces
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciatic

Net real estate ass¢
For-sale residential condominiur
Real estate and other assets, net, held fol
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,274 $8&95, respectivel
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowanct8¥ and $868, respective
Accrued straigl-line rents receivable, net of allowance of $1,38@ $#2,209respectively
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $61,015 and $59,383,

respectively

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total Assets

Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:

Mortgages and notes payal
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiied
Financing obligation
Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partnigr:
Equity:

Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awthdrshares

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSl{aquidation preference $1,000

share), 29,092 shares issued and outstar

8.000% Series B Cumulative Redeemable PreferreteSiiiquidation preference $25 per

share), 2,100,000 shares issued and outstal

Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdsbares
72,130,214 and 71,690,487 shares issued and atitsamespectivel

Additional paicin capital
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholdel
Accumulated other comprehensive i

Total Stockholder Equity
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affilia

Total Equity
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and
Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
$ 347,87¢ $ 347,87t
2,897,79; 2,895,77!
6,882 4,524
107,83’ 108,06
3,360,38! 3,356,24!
(854,42 (835,164
2,505,96: 2,521,08
7,75¢ 8,22¢
1,86: 1,85:
30,81( 14,20¢
6,50¢ 4,39¢
21,86: 20,71¢
18,917 19,04
96,927 93,43t
63,98: 63,60"
86,04( 85,05¢
36,60¢ 40,21

$ 2,877,22! $ 2,871,83

$ 1,552,57 $ 1,522,94!

93,77t 106,71¢
33,04( 33,11/
1,679,39: 1,662,77!
132,63( 120,83¢
29,09: 29,09:
52,50( 52,50(
721 717
1,764,40. 1,766,88
(782,06() (761,78%)
(3,817 (3,648
1,060,84! 1,083,76:
4,367 4,46(
1,065,20 1,088,22:

2,877,22' $ 2,871,83
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF |INCOME

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Rental and other revenues $ 115,59: $ 115,05
Operating expenses
Rental property and other expen 41,37¢ 41,71°F
Depreciation and amortizatic 33,81 32,72¢
General and administratiy 7,79: 8,501
Total operating expens: 82,98¢ 82,95!
Interest expense:
Contractua 22,431 21,80:
Amortization of deferred financing cos 821 83t
Financing obligation 291 47¢€
23,54: 23,11:
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,87: 1,70(C
1,87: 1,70C
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and equityin
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 10,93¢ 10,69(
Gains on disposition of proper — 19
Gains on disposition of f-sale residential condominiur 38 19C
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia 1,46 79¢
Income from continuing operations 12,44: 11,69«
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operatic — 214
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations — 174
38¢€
Net income 12,44: 12,08:
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnerst (507) (520)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees consolidated affiliate (123 (214)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (1,677) (1,677)
Net income available for commor
stockholders $ 10,13¢ $ 9,671
Earnings per common share- basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder $ 014 % 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fammon stockholder = 0.01
Net income available for common stockhold $ 0.14 % 0.14
Weighted average Common Shares outstan- basic 71,81 71,414
Earnings per common share- diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder $ 014 % 0.1:
Income from discontinued operations available fammon stockholder — 0.01
Net income available for common stockhold $ 014 % 0.14
Weighted average Common Shares outstar- diluted 75,79: 75,39
Net income available for common stockholders
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder $ 10,13¢ $ 9,30¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholder = 36€
Net income available for common stockhold $ 10,13¢ $ 9,671

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents.




(Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Distributions

Series A Series B Non- in Excess of
Number Cumulative Cumulative Accumulated Controlling Net Income
of Redeemabli Redeemabl: Additional Other Interests in Available for
Common Common Preferred Preferred Paid-In  Comprehensive Consolidatec Common
Shares  Stock Shares Shares Capital Loss Affiliates  Stockholders Total
Balance at $ $ $
December 31, 2(71,690,48 717 29,09: 52,50($ 1,766,88'$ (3,649% 4,46($ (761,78%% 1,088,22

Issuances of

Common Stock,

net 307,06( 3 — — 8,38¢ — — — 8,391
Conversion of

Common Units tc

Common Stocl 5,641 — — — 18€ — — — 18¢€
Dividends on

Common Stocl — — — — — — — (30,417 (30,41)
Dividends on

Preferred Stoc — — — — — — — (1,677%) (1,677%)

Adjustment of

noncontrolling

interests in the

Operating

Partnership to fa

value — — — — (13,08)) — — — (13,087
Distributions to

noncontrolling

interests in

consolidated

affiliates — — — — — — (221) — (221)
Issuances of

restricted stock,

net 127,02¢ — — — — — — — —
Share-based

compensation

expense — 1 — — 2,02¢ — — — 2,02¢
Net (income]

attributable to

noncontrolling

interests in the

Operating

Partnershig — — — — — — — (507) (507)
Net (income

attributable to

noncontrolling

interests in

consolidated

affiliates — — — — — — 123 (12%) —
Comprehensive

income:

Net income — — — — — — — 12,44: 12,44:

Other

comprehensive
loss — — — — — (164) — — (164

Total

comprehensive

income 12,27¢

Balance at
March 31, 201 72,130,21. % 721% 29,09: % 52,50($ 1,764,40. % (3,815% 4,36:$ (782,060% 1,065,20




Balance at
December 31, 2C

Issuances of
Common Stock,
net

Conversion of
Common Units tc
Common Stocl

Dividends on
Common Stocl

Dividends on
Preferred Stoc

Adjustment of
noncontrolling
interests in the
Operating
Partnership to fai
value

Distributions to
noncontrolling
interests in
consolidated
affiliates

Issuances of
restricted stock,
net

Share-based
compensation
expense

Net (income]
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests in the
Operating
Partnershig

Net (income]
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests in
consolidated
affiliates

Comprehensive
income:
Net income
Other

comprehensive
income

Total
comprehensive
income

Balance at
March 31, 201(

Distributions

Series A Series B Non- in Excess of
Number Cumulative Cumulative Accumulated Controlling Net Income
of RedeemabliRedeemabl: Additional Other Interests in Available for
Common Common Preferred Preferred Paid-In  Comprehensive Consolidatec Common
Shares  Stock Shares Shares Capital Loss Affiliates  Stockholders Total
71,285,30 $ 71:$ 29,09: $ 52,50($ 1,751,39:$ (3,810% 518:$ (701,93)% 1,133,14.
68,88¢ 1 — — 1,141 — — — 1,14z
92,97 1 — — 2,924 — — — 2,92¢
— — — — — — — (30,329 (30,329
— — — — — — — (1,677) (1,677)
— — — — 5,23t — — — 5,23¢
— — — — — — (204) — (204)
154,89° — — — — — — — —
— 1 — — 2,05¢ — — — 2,05¢
— — — — — — — (520 (520
— — — — — — 214 (2149 —
— — — — — — — 12,08: 12,08:
— — — — — 45¢ — — 45€
12,54(
71,602,05 $ 71€$ 29,09: % 52,50($ 1,762,75.$ (3,355% 519:$% (722,584% 1,124,31

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Operating activities:
Net income $ 12,44: $ 12,08:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 33,81 32,91:
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisi-related intangible assets and liabilit 49¢ 261
Shar+-based compensation expel 2,02¢ 2,05¢
Additions to allowance for doubtful accoul 29¢ 1,331
Amortization of deferred financing cos 821 83t
Amortization of settled ca-flow hedges (29) 23¢
Net gains on disposition of prope! — (199
Gains on disposition of f-sale residential condominiur (38) (290)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (1,467 (795)
Changes in financing obligatiol (74) 52
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fits 1,137 681
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (999 (3,929
Prepaid expenses and other as (1,449 (509)
Accrued straigl-line rents receivabl (3,219 (1,407
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiied (15,29) (3,676
Net cash provided by operating activit 28,48« 39,75(
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lgasists (16,835 (16,819
Net proceeds from disposition of -sale residential condominiur 51C 1,94:
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aies 408 73C
Repayments of mortgages and notes recei\ 133 59
Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat (422) (36)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingities 1,96¢ 59€
Net cash used in investing activiti (14,240 (13,52%
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stoc (30,417 (30,329
Dividends on Preferred Stor (1,677) (2,677)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&ating Partnershi (1,610 (1,619
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (221) (204)
Net proceeds from the issuance of Common S 8,391 1,142
Borrowings on revolving credit facilit 5,00( 4,00(C
Repayments of revolving credit facili (35,000 (4,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payi 200,00( —
Repayments of mortgages and notes pay (140,49) (2,725
Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities (1,629 (18¢)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activi 2,36¢ (35,589
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis: 16,60¢ (9,36))
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gb 14,20¢ 23,69¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the pi $ 3081($ 14,33t

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capital

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

Conversion of Common Units to Common Stock

Change in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing and leagicosts

Unrealized gains on marketable securities ol-qualified deferred compensation pl
Settlement of financing obligatic

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opigrg Partnership to fair valt
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
$ 18€ $ 2,92¢
$ 2,641 $ (3,45¢)
$ 9,91z $ 10,19¢
$ 4,02 $ 2,652
$ 177 $ 204
$ — $ 4,18¢
$ 13,081 $ (5,235
$ (139 $ 21¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NoOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2011
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per slre data)
(Unaudited)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

The Company is a fully-integrated, self-administesnd self-managed equity real estate investmest (FREIT”) that operates in tl
Southeastern and Midwestern United States. The @oyngonducts virtually all of its activities thrdughe Operating Partnership.
March 31, 2011, the Company and/or the OperatimtnBiship wholly owned: 294 iservice office, industrial and retail propertiesmprising
27.1 million square feet; 96 rental residentialtsinR4 forsale residential condominiums; 610 acres of undgesl land suitable for futL
development, of which 523 acres are considered lvolidings; and an additional three office propertieat are considered completed but no
stabilized.

The Company is the sole general partner of the &jpey Partnership. At March 31, 2011, the Companyex all of the Preferred Units ¢
71.7 million, or 95.0%, of the Common Units. Limdtpartners (including one officer and two directofghe Company) own the remaining
million Common Units. Generally, the Operating Rarship is obligated to redeem each Common Unihatequest of the holder thereof
cash equal to the value of one share of CommonkS®O1 par value, based on the average of the ehgmlice for the 10 trading de
immediately preceding the notice date of such rgatiem provided that the Company, at its option, ralact to acquire any such Common U
presented for redemption for cash or one shareoofirGon Stock. The Common Units owned by the Commasynot redeemable. During
three months ended March 31, 2011, the Compangneelé 5,641 Common Units for a like number of shaféSommon Stock.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparecbnformity with accounting principles generakycepted in the United Sta
("GAAP”). Our Consolidated Statements of Income for the thmerths ended March 31, 2010 were revised fromipusly reported amounts
reflect in discontinued operations the operatiomstfiose properties sold or held for sale subsequeethat date which required discontin
operations presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include ther@ting Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries #wode entities in which we have
controlling financial interest. All significant ietcompany transactions and accounts have beennefiedi. At March 31, 2011 a
December 31, 2010, we were not involved with anjties that were determined to be variable inteesgities.

The unaudited interim consolidated financial staeta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiaeimformation, in the opinion i
management, contain all adjustments (including mbnracurring accruals) necessary for a fair pregent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certates and other information from the interim cormdstied financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form XD-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Tl&sesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2010 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that affect
amounts reported in the consolidated financiabstents and accompanying notes. Actual results difflet from those estimates.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

2. MORTGAGES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
The following table sets forth our mortgages antésoeceivable:

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Seller financing (first mortgage $ 17,18( $ 17,18(
Less allowanci — —
17,18( 17,18(
Promissory note 2,22¢ 2,732
Less allowanct (497) (868)
1,731 1,86¢
Mortgages and notes receivable, $ 18,911 $ 19,04«

The following table sets forth our notes receivallewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Beginning notes receivable allowar $ 86¢ $ 69¢
Bad debt expens 22 63
Write-offs (364) —
Recoveries/othe (29 (29
Total notes receivable allowan $ 497 s 73z

Our mortgages and notes receivable consists ptimafiseller financing issued in conjunction witlvd disposition transactions in f
second quarter of 2010. As of March 31, 2011, therést payments on both mortgages receivable geerent and there were no indication
impairment on the receivables.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

3. INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

We have equity interests ranging from 10.0% to %0il various joint ventures with unrelated thirdtpes. The following table sets forth
combined, summarized income statements for ournsaliwated joint ventures:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Income Statements:

Revenues $ 25,217 $ 35,58¢

Expenses:
Rental property and other expen 11,997 17,167
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,61¢€ 9,60(
Interest expens 6,00 8,56¢
Total expenses 24,62( 35,33
Net income $ 597 $ 25€

Our share of:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate as $ 2,09: $ 3,341
Interest expens $ 2,161 $ 3,42:
Net income $ 921 $ 212
Our share of net incon $ 921 $ 212
Purchase accounting and management, leasing aedfe#s adjustmen 54¢€ 583
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia $ 1,467 $ 79E

During the second quarter of 2010, we sold our tggnterests in a series of unconsolidated joimtuees relating to properties in [
Moines, IA. For information regarding this saleg $¢ote 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsir 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

10
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

4, INTANGIBLE ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand liabilities, net of accumulated amortizatio

Assets:
Deferred financing cos

Less accumulated amortizati

Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentauas acquisitio-related intangible assel

Less accumulated amortizati

Deferred financing and leasing costs,

Liabilities:

Acquisitior-related intangible liabilities (in accounts payalaecrued expenses and other liabilit

Less accumulated amortizati

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and liabilities:

Amortization of deferred financing cos

Amortization of acquisitio-related intangible assets (in depreciation and tination)
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues
Amortization of acquisitio-related intangible assets and liabilities (in reatal other revenue

The following table sets forth scheduled future aimation of intangible assets and liabilities:

April 1, 2011 through December 31, 2C
2012
2013
2014
2015

Thereafter

March 31, December 31
2011 2010

$ 17,39¢ $ 16,412

(7,24%) (7,054)

10,15( 9,35¢

129,65¢ 128,03(

(53,766 (52,329

75,89( 75,701

$ 86,04( $ 85,05¢

$ 70¢ $ 658

(201) (125)

$ 50¢€ $ 533

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2011 2010
$ 821 $ 83t
$ 4,35¢ $ 3,76¢
$ 33¢ $ 261
$ 161 $ 40
Amortization

Amortization of

of Acquisition-

Acquisition- Related

Related Amortization Intangible
Intangible of Lease Assets and
Amortization Assets (in  Incentives (in Liabilities (in
of Deferred  Depreciation  Rental and Rental and

Financing and Other Other
Costs Amortization)  Revenues) Revenues)
$ 2,54¢ $ 12,63 $ 864 $ 461
3,092 14,30: 1,05¢ 53z
1,48¢ 11,47 89¢ 377
1,09¢ 8,81 73¢ 28t
1,09¢ 6,457 52¢ 182
83z 13,49 1,81 473
$ 10,15( $ 67,17 $ 5,89¢ $ 2,311

11
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

4. NTANGIBLE ASSETSAND LIABILITIES - Continued

The weighted average remaining amortization perfodsieferred financing costs, acquisiticelated intangible assets (in depreciation
amortization), lease incentives and acquisitielated intangible assets and liabilities (in réated other revenues) were 3.5 years, 6.1 yed#
years and 6.5 years, respectively, as of Marct2311.
5. MORTGAGES AND NOTES PAYABLE

The following table sets forth our consolidated tgages and notes payable:

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Secured indebtedness $ 751,50: $ 754,39¢
Unsecured indebtedness 801,07¢ 768,54t
Total mortgages and notes pays $ 155257 $ 1,522,94

At March 31, 2011, our secured mortgage loans wecered by real estate assets with an aggregagpreuiated book value of $1.2 billic

Our $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis scheduled to mature on February 21, 2013 ianllides an accordion feature 1
allows for an additional $50.0 million of borrowirgapacity subject to additional lender commitme#/tssuming we continue to have th
publicly announced ratings from the credit ratingercies, the interest rate and facility fee underrevolving credit facility are based on
lower of the two highest publicly announced ratingased on our current credit ratings, the interats is LIBOR plus 290 basis points and
annual facility fee is 60 basis points. There waseamounts and $33.0 million outstanding underreuolving credit facility at March 31, 20
and April 25, 2011, respectively. At March 31, 20drid April 25, 2011, we had $0.5 million of outstary letters of credit, which reduces
availability on our revolving credit facility. As esult, the unused capacity of our revolving dréatility at March 31, 2011 and April 25, 2C
was $399.5 million and $366.5 million, respectively

Our $70.0 million secured construction facility, which $52.1 million was outstanding at March 3Q12, is scheduled to mature
December 20, 2011. Assuming no defaults have oeduwe have the option to extend the maturity @iaitean additional ongear period. Th
interest rate is LIBOR plus 85 basis points. Thislfty had $17.9 million of availability at both &ich 31, 2011 and April 25, 2011.

In the first quarter of 2011, we obtained a $20@ilion, five-year unsecured bank term loan bearing interestiBOR plus 220 bas
points. The proceeds were used to pay off at mgtar$137.5 million unsecured bank term loan bepierest of LIBOR plus 110 basis poil
pay off amounts then outstanding under our revglredit facility and for general corporate purpose

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to outtanting debt.
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NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

6. NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsklate to the ownership of Common Units by vasidndividuals and entities other tt
the Company. The following table sets forth nonoaltihg interests in the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010

Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatiragtnershif $ 120,83 $ 129,76!
Adjustments of noncontrolling interests in the Gyierg Partnership to fair valt 13,081 (5,235
Conversion of Common Units to Common St (18¢) (2,925
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interestthe Operating Partnerst 507 52C
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the@gting Partnershi (1,610 (1,619
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 13263($ 120,51

The following table sets forth net income availafle common stockholders and transfers from nomodliimg interests in the Operati
Partnership:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Net income available for common stockholders $ 10,13¢ $ 9,671
Increase in additional paid in capital from coni@nsof Common Units to Common Sto 18€ 2,92¢
Change from net income available for common stoltdrs and transfers from noncontrolling intere $ 10,32 $ 12,59¢

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At March 31, 2011, noncontrolling interests in colidated affiliates, a component of equity, relatesour joint venture partnes’50.0%
interest in office properties located in Richmo¥d,. Our joint venture partner is an unrelated thpedty.

7. DscLosURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following summarizes the three levels of inpihist we use to measure fair value, as well asafisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicaktsor liabilities.
Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalolerisies which we use to pay benefits under our-goalified deferred compensation pl

Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in the OpergtPartnership relate to the ownership of Commoitsly various individuals and entit
other than the Company. Our Level 1 liability ig aon-qualified deferred compensation obligation.

13
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NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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7. DscLOSURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued

Level 2. Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sischumted prices for similar assets or liabilitigapted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market datasustantially the full term of the related as
or liabilities.

We had no Level 2 assets or liabilities at MarchZ111 and December 31, 2010.

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlenormarket activity and that are significantthe fair value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 asset is our tax increment financingdyavhich is not routinely traded but whose failuesis determined using an estimat
projected redemption value based on quoted bidlasks for similar unrated municipal bonds.

The following tables set forth the assets, nonadlirig interests in the Operating Partnership dability that we measure at fair value
level within the fair value hierarchy. We determthe level based on the lowest level of substarntipat used to determine fair value.

March 31,
2011 Level 1 Level 3
Assets:
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid expenses and
other assets $ 4,10C $ 4,10C $ —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesather assets) 15,564 — 15,564
Total Assets $ 19,66‘ $ 4,10( $ 15,56‘
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 132,63( $ 132,63( $ —
Liability:
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligation (in@atts payable, accrued expenses anc
other liabilities) $ 4,10C $ 4,10C $ —
December 31
2010 Level 1 Level 3
Assets:
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid expenses and
other assets $ 3,47¢ $ 3,47¢ $ —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesather assets) 15,69¢ — 15,69¢
Tota| Assets $ 19,172 $ 3,475 $ 15,695
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 120,83t $ 120,83¢ $ —
Liability:
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligation (in@atts payable, accrued expenses anc
other liabilities) $ 4,091 $ 4,091 $ —

14
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7. DscLosURE ABoUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued
The following table sets forth our Level 3 asset:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond
Beginning balanc $ 15,69¢ $ 16,87
Unrealized gain/(loss) (in AOCL (135) 21¢
Ending balanc: $ 15,56 $ 17,09(

We own a tax increment financing bond associatet aiproperty developed by us. This bond amorti@geaaturity in 2020. The estimat
fair value at March 31, 2011 was $2.7 million belihwe outstanding principal due on the bond. Ifyttedd-to-maturity used to fair value this bc
was 100 basis points higher or lower, the fair gadfi the bond would have been $0.6 million lowe$6r7 million higher, respectively, as
March 31, 2011. Currently, we intend to hold thist and have concluded that we will not be requicedell this bond before recovery of
bond principal. Payment of the principal and ing¢ffler the bond is guaranteed by us and, therefeeehave recorded no credit losses relat
the bond in each of the three months ended MarcB@I1 and 2010. There is no legal right of offséh the liability, which we report as
financing obligation, related to this tax increménancing bond.

The following table sets forth the carrying amouamsl fair values of our financial instruments nisctbsed elsewhere:

Carrying

Amount Fair Value
March 31, 2011
Mortgages and notes receiva $ 18,911 $ 19,06¢
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,552,57 $ 1,638,96!
Financing obligation $ 33,04( $ 21,63:
December 31, 201!
Mortgages and notes receivable $ 19,04« $ 19,09:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,522,94' $ 1,581,51
Financing obligations $ 33,11« $ 23,88(

The carrying values of our cash and cash equivaleastricted cash, accounts receivable, marketstarities of nomualified deferre
compensation plan, tax increment financing bondh-aquelified deferred compensation obligation and momolling interests in the Operati
Partnership are equal to or approximate fair valilee fair values of our mortgages and notes rebdsyanortgages and notes payable
financing obligations were estimated using the ineamr market approaches to approximate the pretewtbuld be paid in an orderly transac
between market participants on the respective neasnt dates.
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8. S$ARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the three months ended March 31, 2011, vametgd 146,581 stock options with an exercise el to the closing market price
a share of our Common Stock on the date of gram. fir value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Bla8ichole
option pricing model, which resulted in a weightaderage grant date fair value per share of $6.40tinD the three months enc
March 31, 2011, we also granted 69,640 sharesnoé-based restricted stock and 57,386 shares df retiarnbased restricted stock w
weighted average grant date fair values per shafi82.72 and $41.02, respectively. We recordedksbased compensation expense of
million and $2.1 million during the three monthgded March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At M&th2011, there was $9.1 million of tc
unrecognized stock-based compensation costs, wiiiche recognized over a weighted average remgioontractual term of 2.9 years.

9. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE L 0SS
The following table sets forth the components ahpeehensive income:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010

Net income $ 12,44: $ 12,08:
Other comprehensive income/(los

Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd (135) 21¢

Amortization of settled ca-flow hedges (29 23¢

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (164) 458

Total comprehensive incon $ 1227¢$ 12,54

The following table sets forth the components of AO

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Tax increment financing bond $ 2,67¢ $ 2,54:
Settled cas-flow hedges 1,13¢ 1,10¢
Total accumulated other comprehensive $ 381z $ 3,64¢
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10. DscoNTINUED OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth our operations whietjuired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010

Rental and other revenues $ — $ 77¢

Operating expenses —
Rental property and other expen — 382
Depreciation and amortizatic — 182
Total operating expens = 565
Income from discontinued operations — 214
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations — 174
Total discontinued operations $ — $ 38¢

The following table sets forth the major classeassets and liabilities of the properties classifie held for sale:

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Assets:
Buildings and tenant improvemer $ 20 $ 20
Land held for developmel 1,80( 1,80(
Net real estate ass¢ 1,82C 1,82C
Prepaid expenses and other assets 43 32
Real estate and other assets, net, held for s: $ 1,86: $ 1,852
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation abte and diluted earnings per Common Share:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Earnings per Common Share- basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 12,447 $ 11,69«
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteiein the Operating Partnership from continuingrapions (507) (500)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing odéras (123 (219
Dividends on Preferred Stor (1,677 (1,677
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder 10,13¢ 9,30
Income from discontinued operatic — 38¢€
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim the Operating Partnership from discontinued
operations — (20)
Income from discontinued operations available funmon stockholders — 36¢€
Net income available for common stockhold $ 10,13¢ $ 9,671
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common S- weighted average shar() (2) 8. 7141
Earnings per Common She- basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder $ 014 % 0.1:
Income from discontinued operations available fammon stockholder — 0.01
Net income available for common stockhold $ 014 % 0.14
Earnings per Common Share- diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 12,447 $ 11,69¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing oderas (123 (219
Dividends on Preferred Stock (1,677 (1,677)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attributak
to noncontrolling interests in the Operating Panghig 10,64: 9,80:
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 38¢€
Net income available for common stockholders bef@e(income) attributable to noncontrolling i
interests in the Operating Partners 10,64t $ 10,197
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common S—-weighted average shar() (2) 71,817 71,41+
Add:
Stock options using the treasury metl 18¢ 164
Noncontrolling interests partnership ur 3,79( 3,81¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumed . )
conversions(1) 75,79: 75,39
Earnings per Common She- diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder $ 0.14 % 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fammon stockholder — 0.01
Net income available for common stockhold $ 0148 014

18




(Table of Contents
HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

11. ERNINGS PER SHARE — Continued

) Options aggregating approximately 0.3 million ssaamd options and warrants aggregating approxisn&él million shares we
outstanding during the three months ended Marcl2@11 and 2010, respectively, but were not incluidetthe computation of dilute
earnings per share because the impact of inclulioh shares would be e-dilutive .

2) Includes all unvested restricted stock since divitseon such restricted stock are -forfeitable.

12. S$GMENT INFORMATION

The following table summarizes the rental and otlesenues and net operating income, the primarysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveness rental property and other expenses, for gudrtable segment:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Rental and Other Revenues(1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 11,90¢ $ 12,13:
Greenville, SC 3,50¢ 3,671
Kansas City, MC 3,651 3,70¢
Memphis, TN 10,10: 7,86¢
Nashville, TN 14,61 15,11«
Orlando, FL 2,31¢ 3,00¢
Piedmont Triad, N( 5,97¢ 5,94t
Raleigh, NC 19,32« 18,80¢
Richmond, VA 11,38( 11,79¢
Tampa, FL 16,79 17,941
Total Office Segmer 99,57¢ 99,99
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 3,93¢ 3,97¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,971 3,021
Total Industrial Segmel 6,91z 6,99¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 8,89¢ 7,68¢
Total Retail Segmer 8,89¢ 7,68¢
Residential
Kansas City, MC 207 37¢
Total Residential Segme 207 37¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 11559: ¢ 115,0%

19




(Table of Contents
HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

12. SGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 7,49 $ 7,63¢
Greenville, SC 2,07t 2,281
Kansas City, MC 2,11 2,21:
Memphis, TN 5,761 5,27¢
Nashville, TN 9,65¢ 9,86¢
Orlando, FL 1,167 1,614
Piedmont Triad, NC 4,02¢ 3,63¢
Raleigh, NC 13,207 12,62¢
Richmond, VA 7,862 7,95(
Tampa, FL 10,39: 10,81¢
Total Office Segment 63,75i 63,92¢
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,84( 2,77C
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,224 2,04¢
Total Industrial Segmel 5,064 4,81¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,28¢ 4,35¢
Total Retail Segmer 5,28¢ 4,35¢
Residential
Kansas City, MC 104 237
Total Residential Segme 104 237
Total Net Operating Income 74,21: 73,33¢
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsdefore disposition of property and condominiums ad
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortizatic (33,819 (32,729
General and administrative expel (7,799 (8,507
Interest expens (23,547) (23,119
Interest and other incon 1,87¢ 1,70C
Income from continuing operations before dispositid property and condominiums and equity in eaysiof
unconsolidated affiliate $ 1093 $ 10,69
Q) Net of discontinued operatior
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13. SBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 1, 2011, we repaid the remaining $10.0liomil of a threeyear unsecured term loan. We incurred no penakileded to this ear
repayment.

On April 1, 2011, we provided a oryear $38.3 million interest only secured loan tousmtonsolidated joint venture, which was use
repay a secured loan to a third party lender atritgt The new loan bears interest at LIBOR plu® B@sis points, but may be reduced by t
50 basis points upon the use of proceeds fromateeas certain assets by the joint venture to reh@yloan.

On April 6, 2011, we acquired a 48,000 square fetlical office property in Raleigh, NC for an intreent of approximately $9.0 millic
in cash and incurred $0.1 million of acquisitiotated costs.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pitranmounts)

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Assets:
Real estate assets, at c(

Land $ 347,87¢ $ 347,87t
Buildings and tenant improvemer 2,897,79: 2,895,77
Development in proce: 6,882 4,52¢
Land held for development 107,83 108,06’
3,360,38! 3,356,24!
Less-accumulated depreciatic (854,42) (835,164
Net real estate ass¢ 2,505,96: 2,521,08:
For-sale residential condominiur 7,758 8,22¢
Real estate and other assets, net, held fol 1,86: 1,852
Cash and cash equivalel 30,79: 14,19¢
Restricted cas 6,50¢ 4,39¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,274 $8%95, respectivel 21,86: 20,71¢
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowanct8¥ and $868, respective 18,911 19,04«
Accrued straigt-line rents receivable, net of allowance of $1,38@ $2,209respectively 96,927 93,43t
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 62,841 62,45

Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdatad amortization of $61,015 and $59,383,
respectively 86,04( 85,05¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 36,45¢ 40,21°
Total Asset: $ 2,875,91 $ 2,870,67

Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:

Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,552,57 % 1,522,94!
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiied 93,77t 106,71¢
Financing obligation 33,04( 33,11«
Total Liabilities 1,679,39: 1,662,77
Commitments and Contingenci
Redeemable Operating Partnership Ur
Common Units, 3,788,346 and 3,793,987 outstandesgpectively 132,63( 120,83¢
Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferenced®0 per unit), 29,092 shares issued and
outstanding 29,09: 29,09:
Series B Preferred Units (liquidation preferencd $&r unit), 2,100,000 shares issued and
outstanding 52,50( 52,50(
Total Redeemable Operating Partnership L 214,22: 202,43(
Equity:
Common Units
General partner Common Units, 755,098 and 750, ¢&tanding, respective 9,81¢t 10,04
Limited partner Common Units, 70,966,307 and 70,830 outstanding, respective 971,93¢ 994,61(
Accumulated other comprehensive I (3,812 (3,649
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 4,362 4,46(
Total Equity 982,30 1,005,46!
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnerdlmits and Equity $ 287591 $ 2,870,67

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Rental and other revenues $ 115,59 $ 115,05¢
Operating expenses
Rental property and other expen 41,52¢ 41,39t
Depreciation and amortizatic 33,81 32,72¢
General and administratiy 7,644 8,821
Total operating expens: 82,98¢ 82,95!
Interest expense:
Contractua 22,431 21,80:
Amortization of deferred financing cos 821 83t
Financing obligation 291 47€
23,54: 23,11:
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,87: 1,70(C
1,87: 1,70C
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and equityin
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 10,93¢ 10,69(
Gains on disposition of proper — 19
Gains on disposition of f-sale residential condominiur 38 19C
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia 1,47¢ 801
Income from continuing operations 12,451 11,70(
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operatic — 214
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations — 174
— 38¢€
Net income 12,451 12,08¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliate (123 (219
Distributions on Preferred Units (1,677 (1,677
Net income available for commor
unitholders $ 10,651 $ 10,19-1
Earnings per Common Unit- basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: $ 0.14 % 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon unitholder — 0.01
Net income available for common unithold $ 014 % 0.14
Weighted average Common Units outstanc- basic 75,19¢ 74,82«
Earnings per Common Unit- diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: $ 014 % 0.1:
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholder — 0.01
Net income available for common unithold $ 0.14 % 0.14
Weighted average Common Units outstanc- diluted 75,38¢ 74,98¢
Net income available for common unitholders
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: $ 10,651 $ 9,80¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholder — 38€
Net income available for common unithold $ 10,651 $ 10,19

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Common Units

Accumulated

Noncontrolling

Other Interests in
General Limited Comprehensive  Consolidated
Partner Partner Loss Affiliates Total
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 10,04« $ 994,61( $ (3,649 $ 446( $ 1,005,46!
Issuance of Common Units, r 84 8,307 — — 8,391
Distributions on Common Unit (319 (31,529 — — (31,84))
Distributions on Preferred Uni a7 (1,660 — — (1,677
Shar-based compensation expel 20 2,00€ — — 2,02¢
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in constated
affiliates — — — (221) (221)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the General tRar (122) (12,000 — — (12,127
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeis
consolidated affiliate D (122) — 12¢ —
Comprehensive incom:
Net income 12¢ 12,32¢ — — 12,45]
Other comprehensive loss — — (164) — (164)
Total comprehensive incon 12,28
Balance at March 31, 20: $ 9,8].E $ 971,93& $ (3,81:) $ 4,36: $ 982,30:
Common Units
Accumulated Noncontrolling
Other Interests in
General Limited Comprehensive  Consolidated
Partner Partner Loss Affiliates Total
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 10,48t $ 1,038,32( $ (3,810) % 5,18: $ 1,050,18!
Issuance of Common Units, r 11 1,131 — — 1,142
Distributions on Common Unit (317) (31,44¢) — — (31,769
Distributions on Preferred Uni a7 (1,660 — — (1,677)
Shar-based compensation expel 21 2,034 — — 2,05t
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in constated
affiliates — — — (204) (204)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRer 92 9,124 — — 9,21¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeein
consolidated affiliate (2) (212) — 214 —
Comprehensive incom
Net income 121 11,96 — — 12,08¢
Other comprehensive income — — 458 — 45¢
Total comprehensive incon 12,54¢
Balance at March 31, 20: $ 10,39« $ 1,029,26( $ (3,355 % 519: $ 1,041,50

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Operating activities:
Net income $ 12,451 $ 12,08¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 33,81 32,91:
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisi-related intangible assets and liabilit 49¢ 261
Shar+-based compensation expel 2,02¢ 2,05¢
Additions to allowance for doubtful accoul 29¢ 1,331
Amortization of deferred financing cos 821 83t
Amortization of settled ca-flow hedges (29) 23¢
Net gains on disposition of prope! — (199
Gains on disposition of f-sale residential condominiur (38) (290)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (1,475 (801)
Changes in financing obligatiol (74) 52
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fits 1,132 657
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (999 (3,929
Prepaid expenses and other as (2,295 (45€)
Accrued straigl-line rents receivabl (3,219 (1,407
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiied (15,297 (3,67
Net cash provided by operating activit 28,63( 39,78(
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lgasists (16,835 (16,819
Net proceeds from disposition of -sale residential condominiur 51C 1,94:
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aies 408 73C
Repayments of mortgages and notes recei\ 133 59
Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat (422) (36)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingities 1,96¢ 59€
Net cash used in investing activiti (14,240 (13,52%
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Uni (31,84 (31,769
Distributions on Preferred Uni (1,677) (1,677)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (227) (204)
Net proceeds from the issuance of Common L 8,391 1,142
Borrowings on revolving credit facilit 5,00( 4,00
Repayments of revolving credit facili (35,000) (4,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes pay: 200,00( —
Repayments of mortgages and notes pay (240,49) (2,725
Additions to deferred financing costs and otheafiicing activities (1,95]) (22€)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activi 2,20¢ (35,459
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis: 16,59« (9,195
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ¢ 14,19¢ 23,51¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the pi $ 30,79: $ 14,32

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capital $ 2360:$ 2354

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Change in accrued capital expenditures $ 2,641 $ (3,456
Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets $ 9,91 $ 10,19¢
Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing and leagicosts $ 4,02 $ 2,652
Unrealized gains on marketable securities ol-qualified deferred compensation pl $ 177 $ 204
Settlement of financing obligatic $ $ 4,18¢
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair vi $ 11,792 $ (9,259
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd $ (235 $ 21¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2011
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)
(Unaudited)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

The Company is a fully-integrated, self-administesnd self-managed equity real estate investmest (FREIT”) that operates in tl
Southeastern and Midwestern United States. The @oyngonducts virtually all of its activities thrdughe Operating Partnership.
March 31, 2011, the Company and/or the OperatimtnBiship wholly owned: 294 iservice office, industrial and retail propertiesmprising
27.1 million square feet; 96 rental residentialtsinR4 forsale residential condominiums; 610 acres of undgeal land suitable for futL
development, of which 523 acres are considered ltolidings; and an additional three office propertieat are considered completed but na
stabilized.

The Company is the sole general partner of the &ipey Partnership. At March 31, 2011, the Companpex all of the Preferred Units ¢
71.7 million, or 95.0%, of the Common Units. Limdteartners (including one officer and two directofghe Company) own the remaining
million Common Units. Generally, the Operating BRarship is obligated to redeem each Common Unihatequest of the holder thereof
cash equal to the value of one share of CommonkSt®©01 par value, based on the average of the ehgmice for the 10 trading de
immediately preceding the notice date of such rgatiem provided that the Company, at its option, ralact to acquire any such Common U
presented for redemption for cash or one shareoofirGon Stock. The Common Units owned by the Commasynot redeemable. During
three months ended March 31, 2011, the Compangneeé 5,641 Common Units for a like number of shaféSommon Stock.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparecbnformity with accounting principles generaligcepted in the United Sta
("GAAP”). Our Consolidated Statements of Income for the thmerths ended March 31, 2010 were revised fromipusly reported amounts
reflect in discontinued operations the operatiamstifiose properties sold or held for sale subsdqgueethat date which required discontin
operations presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include whoilkned subsidiaries and those entities in whichhaee the controlling financi
interest. All significant intercompany transacticarsd accounts have been eliminated. At March 311 2thd December 31, 2010, we were
involved with any entities that were determinedbéovariable interest entities.

The unaudited interim consolidated financial st&eta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiaeimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbnracurring accruals) necessary for a fair pregent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certates and other information from the interim cordstied financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q permitted by SEC rules and regulations. These Cileged Financial Statements should be re¢
conjunction with our 2010 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that affect
amounts reported in the consolidated financiakst@nts and accompanying notes. Actual results difflt from those estimates.
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2. MORTGAGES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
The following table sets forth our mortgages antésoeceivable:

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Seller financing (first mortgage $ 17,18( $ 17,18(
Less allowanci — —
17,18( 17,18(
Promissory note 2,22¢ 2,732
Less allowanct (497) (868)
1,731 1,86¢
Mortgages and notes receivable, $ 18,911 $ 19,04«

The following table sets forth our notes receivallewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Beginning notes receivable allowar $ 86¢ $ 69¢
Bad debt expens 22 63
Write-offs (364) —
Recoveries/othe (29 (29
Total notes receivable allowan $ 497 s 73z

Our mortgages and notes receivable consists ptimafiseller financing issued in conjunction witlvd disposition transactions in f
second quarter of 2010. As of March 31, 2011, therést payments on both mortgages receivable geerent and there were no indication
impairment on the receivables.
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3. INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

We have equity interests ranging from 10.0% to %0il various joint ventures with unrelated thirdtpes. The following table sets forth
combined, summarized income statements for ournsaliwated joint ventures:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Income Statements:

Revenues $ 24,20: $ 34,56¢

Expenses:
Rental property and other expen 11,371 16,527
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,24¢ 9,231
Interest expens 5,82¢ 8,361
Total expenses 23,44 34,12¢
Net income $ 76C $ 444

Our share of:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate as $ 2,05 $ 3,30z
Interest expens $ 2,137 $ 3,39¢
Net income $ 93t $ 228
Our share of net incon $ 93t $ 22¢
Purchase accounting and management, leasing aedfe#s adjustmen 54C 573
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia $ 147t $ 801

During the second quarter of 2010, we sold our tggnterests in a series of unconsolidated joimtuees relating to properties in [
Moines, IA. For information regarding this saleg $¢ote 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsir 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

ES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4, INTANGIBLE ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand liabilities, net of accumulated amortizatio

Assets:
Deferred financing cos

Less accumulated amortizati

Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentauas acquisitio-related intangible assel

Less accumulated amortizati

Deferred financing and leasing costs

Liabilities:

Acquisitior-related intangible liabilities (in accounts payalaecrued expenses and other liabilit

Less accumulated amortizati

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and liabilities:

March 31, December 31
2011 2010

$ 17,39¢ $ 16,412

(7,24%) (7,054)

10,15( 9,35¢

129,65¢ 128,03(

(53,766 (52,329

75,89( 75,701

$ 86,04( $ 85,05¢

$ 70¢ $ 658

(201) (125)

$ 50¢€ $ 533

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Amortization of deferred financing cos $ 821 $ 83t
Amortization of acquisitio-related intangible assets (in depreciation and tination) $ 4,35¢ $ 3,76¢
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues $ 33¢ $ 261
Amortization of acquisitio-related intangible assets and liabilities (in reatal other revenue $ 161 $ 40
The following table sets forth scheduled future aimation of intangible assets and liabilities:
Amortization
Amortization of
of Acquisition-
Acquisition- Related
Related Amortization Intangible

Intangible of Lease Assets and

Amortization Assets (in  Incentives (in Liabilities (in

of Deferred  Depreciation  Rental and Rental and

Financing and Other Other

Costs Amortization)  Revenues) Revenues)
April 1, 2011 through December 31, 2C $ 2,54¢ $ 12,63 $ 864 $ 461
2012 3,092 14,30: 1,05¢ 53z
2013 1,48¢ 11,47 89¢ 377
2014 1,09¢ 8,81 73¢ 28t
2015 1,09¢ 6,457 52¢ 182
Thereafter 832 13,49¢ 1,81: 47%
$ 10,15( $ 67,17 $ 5,89¢ $ 2,311
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4. NTANGIBLE ASSETSAND LIABILITIES - Continued

The weighted average remaining amortization perfodsieferred financing costs, acquisiticelated intangible assets (in depreciation
amortization), lease incentives and acquisitielated intangible assets and liabilities (in réated other revenues) were 3.5 years, 6.1 yed#
years and 6.5 years, respectively, as of Marct2311.
5. MORTGAGES AND NOTES PAYABLE

The following table sets forth our consolidated tgages and notes payable:

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Secured indebtedness $ 751,50: $ 754,39¢
Unsecured indebtedness 801,07¢ 768,54t
Total mortgages and notes payable $ 155257 $ 152294

At March 31, 2011, our secured mortgage loans wecered by real estate assets with an aggregagpreuiated book value of $1.2 billic

Our $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis scheduled to mature on February 21, 2013 ianllides an accordion feature 1
allows for an additional $50.0 million of borrowirgapacity subject to additional lender commitme#/tssuming we continue to have th
publicly announced ratings from the credit ratingercies, the interest rate and facility fee underrevolving credit facility are based on
lower of the two highest publicly announced ratingased on our current credit ratings, the interats is LIBOR plus 290 basis points and
annual facility fee is 60 basis points. There waseamounts and $33.0 million outstanding underreuolving credit facility at March 31, 20
and April 25, 2011, respectively. At March 31, 20drid April 25, 2011, we had $0.5 million of outstary letters of credit, which reduces
availability on our revolving credit facility. As esult, the unused capacity of our revolving dréatility at March 31, 2011 and April 25, 2C
was $399.5 million and $366.5 million, respectively

Our $70.0 million secured construction facility, which $52.1 million was outstanding at March 3Q12, is scheduled to mature
December 20, 2011. Assuming no defaults have oeduwe have the option to extend the maturity @iaitean additional ongear period. Th
interest rate is LIBOR plus 85 basis points. Thislfty had $17.9 million of availability at both &ich 31, 2011 and April 25, 2011.

In the first quarter of 2011, we obtained a $20@ilion, five-year unsecured bank term loan bearing interestiBOR plus 220 bas
points. The proceeds were used to pay off at mgtar$137.5 million unsecured bank term loan bepierest of LIBOR plus 110 basis poil
pay off amounts then outstanding under our revglredit facility and for general corporate purpose

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to outtanting debt.

6. NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At March 31, 2011, noncontrolling interests in colidated affiliates, a component of equity, relatesour joint venture partnes’50.0%
interest in office properties located in Richmo¥d,. Our joint venture partner is an unrelated thpedty.
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7. DscLosURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following summarizes the three levels of inpihist we use to measure fair value, as well asafisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabtssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalslerisies which we use to pay benefits under our-qoalified deferred compensation pl
Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in the OpergtPartnership relate to the ownership of Commoitsly various individuals and entit
other than the Company. Our Level 1 liability i oon-qualified deferred compensation obligation.

Level 2. Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sischumted prices for similar assets or liabilitigapted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market datauustantially the full term of the related as
or liabilities.

We had no Level 2 assets or liabilities at MarchZ111 and December 31, 2010.

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlenormarket activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 asset is our tax increment financingdyavhich is not routinely traded but whose failuesis determined using an estimat
projected redemption value based on quoted bidlasks for similar unrated municipal bonds.

The following tables set forth the assets, nonadlirig interests in the Operating Partnership dability that we measure at fair value
level within the fair value hierarchy. We determthe level based on the lowest level of substarntipat used to determine fair value.

March 31,
2011 Level 1 Level 3
Assets:
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid expenses and
other assets $ 4,10C $ 4,10C $ —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesather assets) 15,564 — 15,564
Total Assets $ 19,66‘ $ 4,10( $ 15,56‘
Liability:
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligation (in@atts payable, accrued expenses anc
other liabilities) $ 4,10C $ 4,10C $ —
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7. DscLosURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued
December 31
2010 Level 1 Level 3
Assets:
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid expenses and
other assets $ 3,47¢ $ 3,47¢ $ —

Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesather assets) 15,69¢ — 15,69¢

Total Assets $ 19,17¢ $ 3,47¢ $ 15,69¢
Liability:

Non-qualified deferred compensation obligation (in@atts payable, accrued expenses anc

other liabilities) 4,091 $ 4,091 $ —
The following table sets forth our Level 3 asset:
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2011 2010
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond
Beginning balanc $ 15,69¢ $ 16,87
Unrealized gain/(loss) (in AOCL (135 21¢

Ending balanci

We own a tax increment financing bond associatet aiproperty developed by us. This bond amorti@geaaturity in 2020. The estimat
fair value at March 31, 2011 was $2.7 million belthe outstanding principal due on the bond. Ifyttedd-to-maturity used to fair value this bc
was 100 basis points higher or lower, the fair gadfi the bond would have been $0.6 million lowe$6r7 million higher, respectively, as
March 31, 2011. Currently, we intend to hold thast and have concluded that we will not be requicedell this bond before recovery of
bond principal. Payment of the principal and ing¢ffler the bond is guaranteed by us and, therefeeehave recorded no credit losses relat
the bond in each of the three months ended MarcB@I1 and 2010. There is no legal right of offséh the liability, which we report as

financing obligation, related to this tax increménancing bond.

The following table sets forth the carrying amousmsl fair values of our financial instruments nisctbsed elsewhere:

March 31, 2011

Mortgages and notes receiva
Mortgages and notes payal
Financing obligation

December 31, 201!

Mortgages and notes receivable
Mortgages and notes payable
Financing obligations

34

Carrying

Amount Fair Value
$ 18,91 $ 19,06¢
$ 1,552,57 $ 1,638,96!
$ 33,04( $ 21,63:
$ 19,04 $ 19,09:
$ 1,522,94! $ 1,581,51!
$ 33,11 $ 23,88(
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7. DscLosURE ABoUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

The carrying values of our cash and cash equivaleastricted cash, accounts receivable, marketstarities of nomualified deferre
compensation plan, tax increment financing bond remqualified deferred compensation obligation are étuar approximate fair value. T
fair values of our mortgages and notes receivahlatgages and notes payable and financing obligatiwere estimated using the incom
market approaches to approximate the price thatldvbe paid in an orderly transaction between mapaticipants on the respect
measurement dates.

8. S$ARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the three months ended March 31, 2011, tomgany granted 146,581 stock options with an egerprice equal to the closi
market price of a share of its Common Stock ondde of grant. The fair value of each option gliargstimated on the date of grant using
Black-Scholes option pricing model, which resulted ineighted average grant date fair value per sha$® df7. During the three months en
March 31, 2011, the Company also granted 69,646eshaf time-based restricted stock and 57,386 shafréotal returrbased restricted sto
with weighted average grant date fair values paresbf $33.72 and $41.02, respectively. We recostieckbased compensation expense of
million and $2.1 million during the three monthgded March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At M&th2011, there was $9.1 million of tc
unrecognized stock-based compensation costs, wiithe recognized over a weighted average remgigontractual term of 2.9 years.

9. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE L 0SS
The following table sets forth the components ahpeehensive income:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010

Net income $ 12,451 $ 12,08¢
Other comprehensive income/(los

Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd (13%) 21¢

Amortization of settled ca-flow hedges (29 23¢

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (164) 458

Total comprehensive incon $ 1228 $ 12,54

The following table sets forth the components of AO

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Tax increment financing bond $ 2,67¢ $ 2,54:
Settled cas-flow hedges 1,134 1,10¢
Total accumulated other comprehensive $ 381z $ 3,64¢
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10. DsSCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth our operations whietjuired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010

Rental and other revenues $ — $ 77¢

Operating expenses —
Rental property and other expen — 382
Depreciation and amortizatic — 182
Total operating expens = 565
Income from discontinued operations — 214
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations — 174
Total discontinued operations $ — $ 38¢

The following table sets forth the major classeassets and liabilities of the properties classifie held for sale:

March 31, December 31

2011 2010
Assets:
Buildings and tenant improvemer $ 20 $ 20
Land held for developmel 1,80( 1,80(
Net real estate ass¢ 1,82C 1,82C
Prepaid expenses and other assets 43 32
Real estate and other assets, net, held for s: $ 1,86: $ 1,852

36




(Table of Contents
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NoOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)

11. BEARNINGS PER UNIT
The following table sets forth the computation aéie and diluted earnings per Common Unit:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Earnings per Common Unit- basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 12,451 $ 11,70(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing operas (123 (214)
Distributions on Preferred Uni (1,677 (1,677
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: 10,651 9,80¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders — 38¢€
Net income available for common unithold $ 10,651 $ 10,19;
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common - weighted average uni(l) (2) 75,19¢ 74,82«
Earnings per Common Ur- basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: $ 014 % 0.1:
Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholder = 0.01
Net income available for common unithold: $ 0.14 $ 0.14
Earnings per Common Unit— diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 12,451 $ 11,70(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogéras (123) (214
Distributions on Preferred Units (1,677) (1,677)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: 10,651 9,80¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders — 38¢€
Net income available for common unithold $ 10,651 $ 10,19;
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common weighted average uni(1) (2) 75,19¢ 74,82¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 18E 164
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uraidjusted weighted average units and assumed .
conversions1) 75,381 74,98¢
Earnings per Common Ur-diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: $ 014 % 0.1:

Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholder — 0.01
Net income available for common unithold: 014 $ 0.14

“

) Options aggregating approximately 0.3 million amdians and warrants aggregating approximately (llfom shares were outstandi
during the three months ended March 31, 2011 ad@,2@spectively, but were not included in the catapon of diluted earnings f
share because the impact of including such shavetivbe an-dilutive .

2) Includes all unvested restricted stock since divitseon such restricted stock are -forfeitable.
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12. S$GMENT INFORMATION

The following table summarizes the rental and otfeeenues and net operating income, the primarysimyg propertytevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveness rental property and other expenses, for gudrtable segment:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Rental and Other Revenues(1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 11,90: $ 12,13
Greenville, SC 3,50¢ 3,671
Kansas City, MC 3,657 3,70¢
Memphis, TN 10,10: 7,86¢
Nashville, TN 14,617 15,11¢
Orlando, FL 2,31¢ 3,00¢
Piedmont Triad, N( 5,97: 5,94:
Raleigh, NC 19,32« 18,80¢
Richmond, VA 11,38( 11,79¢
Tampa, FL 16,79« 17,94.
Total Office Segmer 99,57¢ 99,99!
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 3,93¢ 3,97¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,971 3,021
Total Industrial Segmel 6,91z 6,99¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 8,89¢ 7,68¢
Total Retail Segmer 8,89¢ 7,68¢
Residential
Kansas City, MC 207 37¢
Total Residential Segme 207 37¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 11559 ¢ 11505
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12. SGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 7,481 $ 7,66¢
Greenville, SC 2,071 2,291
Kansas City, MC 2,111 2,22:
Memphis, TN 5,74¢ 5,301
Nashville, TN 9,63¢ 9,91:
Orlando, FL 1,16¢ 1,621
Piedmont Triad, NC 4,021 3,652
Raleigh, NC 13,18( 12,68«
Richmond, VA 7,84¢€ 7,98¢
Tampa, FL 10,37! 10,86¢
Total Office Segmer 63,62¢ 64,204
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,83¢ 2,78
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,21¢ 2,057
Total Industrial Segmel 5,05¢ 4,83¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,27¢ 4,37¢
Total Retail Segmer 5,27¢ 4,37¢
Residential
Kansas City, MC 104 23€
Total Residential Segme 104 23€
Total Net Operating Income 74,06« 73,65¢
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsdefore disposition of property and condominiums ad
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortizatic (33,819 (32,729
General and administrative expel (7,649 (8,827)
Interest expens (23,547) (23,119
Interest and other incon 1,87¢ 1,70C
Income from continuing operations before dispositid property and condominiums and equity in eaysiof
unconsolidated affiliate $ 1093 $ 10,69
Q) Net of discontinued operatior
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13. SBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 1, 2011, we repaid the remaining $10.0liomil of a threeyear unsecured term loan. We incurred no penakileded to this ear
repayment.

On April 1, 2011, we provided a oryear $38.3 million interest only secured loan tousmtonsolidated joint venture, which was use
repay a secured loan to a third party lender atritgt The new loan bears interest at LIBOR plu® B@sis points, but may be reduced by t
50 basis points upon the use of proceeds fromateeas certain assets by the joint venture to reh@yloan.

On April 6, 2011, we acquired a 48,000 square fetlical office property in Raleigh, NC for an intreent of approximately $9.0 millic
in cash and incurred $0.1 million of acquisitiotated costs.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated, self-administieend selfmanaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managgnevelopmen
construction and other custonretated services for our properties and for thiedtips. The Company conducts virtually all of itieties
through the Operating Partnership and is its seleegal partner. At March 31, 2011, we owned or Aadnterest in 329 iservice office
industrial and retail properties, encompassing @qprately 32.4 million square feet, which includbsee completed but not yet stabilized of
properties aggregating 325,000 square feet, orieeoffroperty under development aggregating 171gifitare feet and a 12.5% interest
261,000 square foot office property directly owrtgdthe Company (included in the Companyonsolidated Financial Statements, but
included in the Operating Partnership’s Consoliddtmancial Statements); 24 feale residential condominiums and 96 rental resialemnits
We are based in Raleigh, North Carolina, and oap@rties and development land are located in Fdoiikorgia, Mississippi, Missouri, No
Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee and Virginiddi#ional information about us can be found on wabsite at www.highwoods.com
Information on our website is not part of this Qedy Report.

You should read the following discussion and analirs conjunction with the accompanying Consolidiakénancial Statements and rele

notes contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report.
DiscLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-L OOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportyncantain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, itiqodar, statemen
about our plans, strategies and prospects undesdiction and under the heading “Business.” Youidamtify forwardiooking statements by ¢
use of forward-looking terminology such as “maywill,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “contina” or other similar words. Although \
believe that our plans, intentions and expectatiefiected in or suggested by such forwhrdking statements are reasonable, we cannot ¢
you that our plans, intentions or expectations wélachieved. When considering such forwlaaking statements, you should keep in minc
following important factors that could cause ouuatresults to differ materially from those contd in any forward-looking statement:

« the financial condition of our customers could detate;

« we may not be able to lease or release seconda@mespace, defined as previously occupied spzetebiecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old lea

« we may not be able to lease our newly constructildibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms aginally anticipated;

« we may not be able to complete development, adgunsreinvestment, disposition or joint venturejects as quickly or on as favora
terms as anticipate:

- development activity by our competitors in our &rig markets could result in an excessive supplyoffite, industrial and rett
properties relative to customer dema

« our markets may suffer declines in economic growth;
« unanticipated increases in interest rates couletase our debt service costs;
- unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating results;

« we may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaear obtain capital on favorable terms to fund working capital needs and grov
initiatives or to repay or refinance outstandingtdgoon maturity; an

« the Company could lose key executive officers.
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This list of risks and uncertainties, however, & mtended to be exhaustive. You should also me\tee other cautionary statements
make in “ltem 1A. Business — Risk Factors” sethdrt our 2010 Annual Report on Form KO-Given these uncertainties, you should not
undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Weeuatake no obligation to publicly release the rissaf any revisions to these forwaiabking
statements to reflect any future events or circantsts or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipatezhts.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
« owning high-quality, differentiated real estateedassn the better submarkets in our core markets;

« improving the operating results of our existing gedies through concentrated leasing, asset maragemost control and custor
service efforts

« developing and acquiring office properties infiihand central business district locations thaprove the overall quality of our portfo
and generate attractive returns over the-term for our stockholder:

« selectively disposing of properties no longer cdased to be core holdings primarily due to locatiage, quality and overall strategic
and

« Mmaintaining a conservative, flexible balance shatt ample liquidity to meet our funding needs gndwth prospects.

While we own and operate a limited number of indaktretail and residential properties, our opegtresults depend heavily
successfully leasing and operating our office prige Economic growth and employment levels inrilm, Georgia, North Carolina a
Tennessee are and will continue to be importargrdenative factors in predicting our future opangtresults.

The key components affecting our rental and otlesemues are average occupancy, rental rates, neglopenents placed in servi
acquisitions and dispositions. Average occupancyegsly increases during times of improving ecoroigriowth, as our ability to lease sp
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratbrexisting leases. Average occupancy generallyirdes during times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityaldl lease space. Asset acquisitions, disposit@md new developments placed in sel
directly impact our rental revenues and could impax average occupancy, depending upon the occypaate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further @ador of the predictability of future revenuestie £xpected lease expirations of our portfolic
a result, in addition to seeking to increase o@rage occupancy by leasing current vacant spacalssanust concentrate our leasing effort
renewing leases on expiring space.

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagapancy proportionally depends upon whether remtieunew leases signed are highe
lower than the rents under the previous leases.anhealized rental revenues from second generbtases signed during any particular ye
generally less than 15% of our total annual rer@aénues. During the first quarter of 2011, we éela866,000 square feet of second gener
office space with a weighted average term of 5.4ryeOn average, tenant improvements for such deasee $10.00 per square foot, le
commissions were $2.55 per square foot and rentessions were $0.55 per square foot. GAAP base terder such leases were $19.87
square foot, or 1.5% higher than under previousdsa

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and cragtiffay customer base. We have an internal guidelihereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically neetkwith the Compang’ Board of Directors. Currently, no customer actsdior more tha
3% of our annualized revenues other than the fédgraernment, which accounts for 9.6% of our anizeal revenues, and AT&T, whi
accounts for 3.6% of our annualized revenues.

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propexrgemses, depreciation and amortization, generalagintinistrative expenses and inte
expense. From time to time, expenses also inclogiairments of assets held for use. Rental propeqienses are expenses associated wit
ownership and operation of rental properties astude expenses that vary somewhat proportionatebctupancy levels, such as common
maintenance and utilities, and expenses that deargtbased on occupancy, such as property taxkeanrance. Depreciation and amortiza
is a noneash expense associated with the ownership oprepkrty and generally remains relatively consiséath year, unless we buy, plac
service or sell assets, since we depreciate oyrepties and related building and tenant improvenassets on a straighihe basis over a fixe
life. General and administrative expenses, netufunts capitalized, consist primarily of managenst employee salaries and other persc
costs, corporate overhead and long-term incentivepensation.
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We anticipate commencing up to $200.0 million oivngevelopment in the remainder of 2011. Any suabjgmts would not be placed
service until 2012 or beyond. We also anticipatguatng up to $200.0 million of new properties aselling up to $75.0 million of nonere
properties in the remainder of 2011. We intend &imain a conservative and flexible balance sheat allows us to capitalize on favore
development and acquisition opportunities as theseaAs of March 31, 2011, our mortgages and npgmble represented 46.2% of
undepreciated book value of our real estate asat®expect this ratio to remain under 50% durirggrdmainder of 2011.

REsSuULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results for the three months ended March 31, 204@ wevised from previously reported amounts ttecefin discontinued operations
operations for those properties sold or held féte sabsequent to that date which required discoatiroperations presentation.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operativare 0.5% higher in the first three months of 26@mpared to the first three mor
of 2010 primarily due to a $2.1 million increaserfr the acquisition of an office property in Memphi# in the third quarter of 2010, pai
offset by a $1.7 million decrease from our sameperty portfolio (those assets owned from JanuaB010 to March 31, 2011). The decreas
revenues from our same property portfolio was dumarily to a negative true-up of prior yesrcost recovery income accrual, resulting f
recently completing the final 2010 billings, partifset by a modest improvement in same propertgupancy to 90.3% as of March 31, 2
from 89.9% as of March 31, 2010. We expect remal ather revenues for the remainder of 2011, agfuiir any discontinued operations
additional acquisition activity, to be higher comgu to the same period in 2010 primarily due tgtaly higher average occupancy and hir
termination fees.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were relativebhanged in the first three months of 2011 compéoethe first three months of 2C
primarily due to a $1.0 million increase from oecent acquisition in Memphis, TN, offset by lowepenses from managementontinuin
efforts to reduce operating expenses in our sampepty portfolio. Operating margin, defined as atrnd other revenues less rental projg
and other expenses expressed as a percentagetalf aad other revenues, was slightly higher at %4i the first three months of 2C
compared to 63.7% in the first three months of 20//@ expect rental property and other expensethforemainder of 2011, adjusted for
discontinued operations and additional acquisitiativity, to be slightly higher compared to the saperiod in 2010 primarily due to higl
utility and repairs and maintenance costs.

Depreciation and amortization was 3.3% higher anfttst three months of 2011 compared to the firste months of 2010 primarily due
our recent acquisition in Memphis, TN. We expegtrdeiation expense for the remainder of 2011, &efufor any discontinued operations
additional acquisition activity, to be slightly nigr compared to the same period in 2010 primatily th the same reason.

General and administrative expenses were 8.4% lowie first three months of 2011 compared tofttst three months of 2010 primar
due to lower incentive compensation. We expect ggraad administrative expenses for the remainéi@0a1, adjusted for changes in the vi
of marketable securities held under our deferredpensation plan, to be lower than the same perideDiLO primarily due to lower incenti
compensation and management’s continuing effortedace general and administrative expenses.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense was 1.9% higher in the first thmeaths of 2011 compared to the first three moofZ010 primarily due to higher aver:
debt balances from the assumption of debt in ocermeacquisition in Memphis, TN. We expect interespense for the remainder of 2C

adjusted for any additional acquisition activity,lte higher than the same period in 2010 primatily to higher average debt balances fror
net proceeds of our new $200.0 million bank teremland less capitalized interest from reduced dpweént activity.

LiQuiDiTy AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Overview
Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexibédance sheet with access to multiple sourcesbf dnd equity capital and suffici
availability under our credit facilities. We genkiyause rents received from customers to fund querating expenses, capital expenditures
distributions. To fund property acquisitions, deghent activity or building renovations and repaptdupon maturity, we may use current (
balances, sell assets, obtain new debt and/or expuiey. Our debt generally consists of mortgagat,densecured debt securities and borrow
under our secured and unsecured credit facilities.

Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table sets fo
the changes in the Company’s cash flows ($ in thods):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2011 2010 Change
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 28,48¢ $ 39,75( $  (11,26¢)
Net cash used in investing activiti (14,240() (13,529 (718)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activi 2,36( (35,589 37,94¢
Total net cash flow $ 1660« $ (93658 25,96t

In calculating net cash flow provided by operatawjivities, depreciation and amortization, which apneash expenses, are added bai
net income. As a result, we have historically gatest a positive amount of cash from operating éies: From period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in odrim@mme, as discussed more fully above under “Resaf Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash used in investing activities generallated to capitalized costs incurred for leasing avajor building improvements and «
acquisition, development, disposition and jointtuea capital activity. During periods of signifidamet acquisition and/or development actiy
our cash used in such investing activities will gratly exceed cash provided by investing activjtighich typically consists of cash recei
upon the sale of properties and distributions gfteafrom our joint ventures.

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activitgsnerally relates to distributions, incurrence aepgayment of debt, and issuan
repurchases or redemptions of Common Stock, Comldmits and Preferred Stock. As discussed previowstyuse a significant amount of «
cash to fund distributions. Whether or not we hemeeases in the outstanding balances of debt glaiperiod depends generally upon the
effect of our acquisition, disposition, developmantl joint venture activity. We generally use oevalving credit facility for working capit
purposes, which means that during any given pefiodrder to minimize interest expense, we may mesggnificant repayments and borrowi
under our revolving credit facility.

The change in net cash provided by operating detvin the first three months of 2011 comparedh® same period in 2010 was
primarily to lower cash rents and termination faed a reduction in accounts payable, partly offgdbwer incentive compensation.

Net cash used in investing activities was relayiveichanged in the first three months of 2011 caegb#o the same period in 2010.
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The change in net cash provided by/(used in) fimanactivities in the first three months of 201Irgmared to the same period in 2010
due primarily to higher stock option exercises aatlborrowings from our new $200.0 million bankntdban.

Capitalization
The following table sets forth the Company’s cdgtdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

March 31, December 31
2011 2010

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book ' $ 155257 $ 1,522,94!
Financing obligation $ 33,04( $ 33,11«
Preferred Stock, at liquidation val $ 81,59: $ 81,59:
Common Stock outstandir 72,13( 71,69(
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Comp. 3,78¢ 3,79¢
Per share stock price at period ¢ $ 35.01 $ 31.8¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common U $ 2,657,88' $ 2,404,16!

$ 4,325,090 $ 4,041,8L

Total market capitalization with debt and obligas:

At March 31, 2011, our mortgages and notes payedpeesented 35.9% of our total market capitaliragond were comprised of $75
million of secured indebtedness with a weightedragye interest rate of 6.14% and $801.1 million n$ecured indebtedness with a weig
average interest rate of 5.39%. Also, our outstamanortgages and notes payable and financing dldigmwere secured by real estate a
with an aggregate undepreciated book value of Billign.

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofdands to meet our short-term liquidity requirerntse Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingditéacility and secured construction cre
facility (which had $366.5 million and $17.9 milfioof availability, respectively, at April 25, 2011Qur shortterm liquidity requiremen
primarily consist of operating expenses, interest principal amortization on our debt, distribucend capital expenditures, including builc
improvement costs, tenant improvement costs argkleammissions. Building improvements are capitatto maintain existing buildings |
typically related to a specific customer. Tenanpiavements are the costs required to customizeesfordhe specific needs of customers.
anticipate that our available cash and cash e@rit®land cash provided by operating activitiesettogr with borrowings under our cre
facilities, will be adequate to meet our short-tdiguidity requirements.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the retient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, our revolvi
and construction credit facilities, term loans arlder unsecured debt), funding of existing and bevlding development or land infrastruct
projects and funding acquisitions of buildings aedelopment land. Additionally, we may, from tingetime, retire some or all of our remain
outstanding Preferred Stock and/or unsecured dehirisies through redemptions, open market repwehgorivately negotiated acquisition:
otherwise.

We expect to meet our liquidity needs through altoation of:

« cash flow from operating activities;

o borrowings under our credit facilities;

« the issuance of unsecured debt;

« theissuance of secured debt;
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« the issuance of equity securities by the Comparfi@Operating Partnership; and
« the disposition of non-core assets.
Financing Activity

Our $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit figilis scheduled to mature on February 21, 2013ianllides an accordion feature 1
allows for an additional $50.0 million of borrowirgapacity subject to additional lender commitme#/tssuming we continue to have th
publicly announced ratings from the credit ratirgercies, the interest rate and facility fee underrevolving credit facility are based on
lower of the two highest publicly announced ratingased on our current credit ratings, the interatg is LIBOR plus 290 basis points and
annual facility fee is 60 basis points. There weseamounts and $33.0 million outstanding underreuolving credit facility at March 31, 20
and April 25, 2011, respectively. At March 31, 208rid April 25, 2011, we had $0.5 million of outstary letters of credit, which reduces
availability on our revolving credit facility. As r@esult, the unused capacity of our revolving dréatility at March 31, 2011 and April 25, 2C
was $399.5 million and $366.5 million, respectively

Our $70.0 million secured construction facility, which $52.1 million was outstanding at March 3012, is scheduled to mature
December 20, 2011. Assuming no defaults have oeduwe have the option to extend the maturity @laitean additional ongear period. Th
interest rate is LIBOR plus 85 basis points. Thislity had $17.9 million of availability at both &dch 31, 2011 and April 25, 2011.

We regularly evaluate the financial condition of fenders that participate in our credit facilitiessng publicly available information. Bas
on this review, we currently expect our lendersiclwlare major financial institutions, to perforneithobligations under our existing facilities.

In the first quarter of 2011, we obtained a $20@ilion, five-year unsecured bank term loan bearing interestiBOR plus 220 bas
points. The proceeds were used to pay off at ntgtar$137.5 million unsecured bank term loan bepiriterest of LIBOR plus 110 basis poil
pay off amounts then outstanding under our revglredit facility and for general corporate purpose

Recent Developments

On April 1, 2011, we repaid the remaining $10.0lioml of a threeyear unsecured term loan. We incurred no penakieded to this ear
repayment.

On April 1, 2011, we provided a oryear $38.3 million interest only secured loan tousconsolidated joint venture, which was use
repay a secured loan to a third party lender atiritgt The new loan bears interest at LIBOR plu® Basis points, but may be reduced by (
50 basis points upon the use of proceeds fromateeds certain assets by the joint venture to rap&yloan.

On April 6, 2011, we acquired a 48,000 square foetlical office property in Raleigh, NC for an intraent of approximately $9.0 millic
in cash and incurred $0.1 million of acquisitiotated costs.

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with the covenantd ather requirements with respect to our outstapdiebt. Although we expect
remain in compliance with these covenants and gdtio at least the next year, depending upon curréuoperating performance, property
financing transactions and general economic cargitiwe cannot assure you that we will continueetén compliance.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loanequire us to comply with customary operating comsaand various financi
requirements. Upon an event of default on the rémglcredit facility, the lenders having at lea&®% of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriiags then outstanding, and we could be prohibitechfborrowing any further amounts under
revolving credit facility, which would adverselyfaét our ability to fund our operations.
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The Operating Partnership has $391.1 million cagyamount of 2017 bonds outstanding and $200.0amitlarrying amount of 2018 bor
outstanding. The indenture that governs these andstg notes requires us to comply with customamgrating covenants and various finar
ratios. The trustee or the holders of at least #%rincipal amount of either series of bonds caceterate the principal amount of such st
upon written notice of a default that remains ueduafter 60 days.

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydaarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accafien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpenuld adversely affect our cash flow and abtiitypay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and ott@venants that restrict our ability to take atsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingaspunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our se@sitr paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

There were no significant changes to our off badasbeet arrangements in the three months endedhMar@?011. For informatic
regarding our off balance sheet arrangements aéreer 31, 2010, see Note 9 to the ConsolidatednEiakStatements in our 2010 Ann
Report on Form 10-K.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

We borrow funds at a combination of fixed and Valearates. Borrowings under our revolving creddilfty, construction facility and bat
term loans bear interest at variable rates. Oug-tenm debt, which consists of secured and unsddorggterm financings and the issuanct
unsecured debt securities, typically bears inteasfixed rates although some loans bear interestadable rates. Our interest rate
management objectives are to limit the impact tériest rate changes on earnings and cash flowsoalodver our overall borrowing costs.
achieve these objectives, from time to time, weeimtto interest rate hedge contracts such asrspBavaps, caps and treasury lock agreeme
order to mitigate our interest rate risk with restp® various debt instruments. We do not holdssue these derivative contracts for tradin
speculative purposes. The interest rate on aluofvariable rate debt is generally adjusted at@néhree month intervals, subject to settlem
under these interest rate hedge contracts. Weealso into treasury lock or similar agreements ftorre to time in order to limit our exposure
an increase in interest rates with respect to éudebt offerings. We had no outstanding interdstladge contracts at March 31, 2011.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There were no changes made by management to tlealcaiccounting policies in the three months enlfiedich 31, 2011. For a descript
of our critical accounting estimates, see “ManagafeDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiand Results of OperationsGritical
Accounting Estimates” in our 2010 Annual ReportFarm 10-K.

NoN-GAAP | NFORMATION

The Company believes that Funds from OperationB@ff and FFO per share are beneficial to managemenhsaadtors and are import:
indicators of the performance of any equity REITecBuse FFO and FFO per share calculations exclucle factors as depreciation
amortization of real estate assets and gains sefoBom sales of operating real estate assetshwhin vary among owners of identical asse
similar conditions based on historical cost accmgnand useful life estimates, they facilitate camgons of operating performance betw
periods and between other REITs. Management balithat historical cost accounting for real estatets in accordance with GAAP implic
assumes that the value of real estate assets dmampredictably over time. Since real estate gahaee historically risen or fallen with mar
conditions, many industry investors and analystet@nsidered the presentation of operating refuitseal estate companies that use histc
cost accounting to be insufficient on a statolRe basis. As a result, management believeghbaise of FFO and FFO per share, together
the required GAAP presentations, provide a morepteta understanding of the Compasmyerformance relative to its competitors and ae
informed and appropriate basis on which to makésdets involving operating, financing and investegivities.
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FFO and FFO per share are n6AAP financial measures and therefore do not regmteset income or net income per share as defig
GAAP. Net income and net income per share as difine GAAP are the most relevant measures in deténgnithe Companyg operatin
performance because FFO and FFO per share inclljdstments that investors may deem subjective, sischdding back expenses suc
depreciation and amortization. Furthermore, FFO slwre does not depict the amount that accruestlgireo the stockholdersbenefit
Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share should nevecdmesidered as alternatives to net income or nainiec per share as indicators of
Company’s operating performance.

The Companys presentation of FFO is consistent with FFO asnddfby the National Association of Real Estateebtment Trus
(“NAREIT”), which is calculated as follows:

« Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with GA

« Less dividends to holders of Preferred Stock asd éxcess of Preferred Stock redemption cost @reying value;
« Less netincome attributable to noncontrolling iests in consolidated affiliates;

« Plus depreciation and amortization of real estasets;

« Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of deprieci@terating properties (but excluding impairmersskes) and excluding items that
classified as extraordinary items under GA,

« Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated pestrigs and joint ventures (to reflect funds froneigtions on the same basis); and

o Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #madion and gains/(losses) on sales and noncdingointerests in consolidat
affiliates related to discontinued operatic

In calculating FFO, the Company adds back net ire@ttributable to noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard imgystctice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company believes th
is important to present FFO on an as-convertedsisasce all of the Common Units not owned by thenBany are redeemable on a onedae-
basis for shares of its Common Stock.

Other REITs may not define FFO in accordance with ¢urrent NAREIT definition or may interpret tharent NAREIT definitiol
differently than we do.
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The Company’s FFO and FFO per share are summarizbd following table ($ in thousands, except glgsire amounts):

Funds from operations:
Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intedees the Operating Partnerst
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim consolidated affiliate
Dividends on preferred stock
Net income available for common stockhold
Add/(deduct):
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a:
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interastthe OperatiniPartnershiy
Unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization of real estate as
Discontinued operation:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate as
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties

Funds from operations

Weighted average shares outstandin(1)

() Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieitCommon Stock equivalen

Three Months Ended March 31,

2011 2010
Per Per
Amount Share Amount Share
$ 12,44 $ 12,08
(507) (520
(129) (219
(1,679 (1,679
10,13¢ $ 0.14 9,671 $ 0.14
33,37¢ 0.44 32,30¢ 0.4<
_ _ (19) _
507 — 52C —
2,09: 0.0¢ 3,341 0.04
— — 182 —
— — (174) —
$ 46,11¢ $ 061 $ 4583 $ 0.61

75,79:

75,39

In addition, the Company believes net operatingpiine from continuing operations (“NOI'dnd same property NOI are beneficia
management and investors and are important ingcatbthe performance of any equity REIT. Managemglieves that NOI is a use
supplemental measure of the Compargroperty operating performance because it prevédeerformance measure of the revenues and ex
directly involved in owning real estate assets pravides a perspective not immediately apparemb fnet income or FFO. The Company def
NOI as rental and other revenues from continuingratons, less rental property and other expemrrsas €ontinuing operations. The Comp
defines same property NOI as NOI for the Compairyservice properties that were wholbyvned during the entirety of the periods prese
(from January 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011). Other REmay use different methodologies to calculate N@d same property NOI a
accordingly the Company’s NOI and same property N@y not be comparable to other REITSs.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtlasame property NOI:

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiumsand equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Other income
Interest expens
General and administrative expel

Depreciation and amortization expet
Net operating income from continuing operations

Less— non same property and other net operating inc
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations

Rental and other revenu

Rental property and other expen
Total net operating income from continuing operatims

Less— non same property and other net operating inc
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations

Total same property net operating income from cwiiig operation
Less- straight line rent and lease termination f

Same property cash net operating income from contiing operations
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Three Months Ended

March 31,

2011 2010
10,93¢ $ 10,69(
(1,879 (2,700
23,54: 23,11
7,792 8,501
33,81: 32,72¢
74,21: 73,33¢
3,751 1,911
70,46: $ 71,42¢

115,59 $ 115,05«
41,37¢ 41,71
74,21: 73,33¢
3,751 1,911
70,46: $ 71,42¢
70,46 $ 71,42¢
3,407 1,32¢
67,055 $ 70,102
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

For information about our market risk as of Decenfife 2010, see “Quantitative and Qualitative Disares About Market Riskih out
2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure costanld procedures that are designed to ensurenfioamiation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SE@corded, processed, summarized and reportéihvtite time periods specified in the SEC’
rules and forms. The CompasyCEO and CFO have concluded that the disclosuttraie and procedures of the Company and the Opg
Partnership were each effective at the end of ¢éhimg covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and mairitegrnal control over financial reporting designexd provide reasonable assurs
regarding the reliability of financial reporting drthe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with gene
accepting accounting principles. There were no gharin internal control over financial reportingidg the three months ended March 31, -
that materially affected, or are reasonably likielymaterially affect, the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting. Thevere also n
changes in internal control over financial repaytduring the three months ended March 31, 2011nta¢rially affected, or are reasonably lik
to materially affect, the Operating Partnershipt®inal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

During the first quarter of 2011, the Company issa@ aggregate of 5,641 shares of Common Stocklters of Common Units in tl
Operating Partnership upon the redemption of a tikmber of Common Units in private offerings exerfrpim the registration requireme
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.tEafcthe holders of Common Units was an accreditgdstor under Rule 501 of the Securi
Act. The resale of such shares was registereddbZdmpany under the Securities Act.

ITEM 5. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
10.1 Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2011ariyamong the Company, the Operating PartnershighenSubsidiarie
named therein and the Lenders named therein (fiegart of the Company’s Annual Report on FormKlfor the yea
ended December 31, 201
12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Comg
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opegdfiartnershij
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of $#zebane-Oxley Act for the Compan
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8a@bane-Oxley Act for the Compan
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8#zsebane-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnerst
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #abane-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnerst
321 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8abane-Oxley Act for the Compan
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #abane-Oxley Act for the Compan
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8abane-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnerst
324 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #abane-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnerst
101 The following financial information from the Compds Quarterly Report on Form 1Q-as of and for the three mon

ended March 31, 2011 formatted in eXtensible BussnBReporting Language (XBRL): (i) Consolidated Bak Shee
(unaudited), (ii) Consolidated Statements of Incomeaudited), (iii) Consolidated Statements of Bggunaudited), (iv
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited),(v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemémaudited), tagge
as blocks of texi
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgéa Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dalsed this report to be signed o1
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

HiGHWOODS PROPERTIES INC.

By: /S| TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole generate

By: IS/ TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 2, 2011



HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND

PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliat
Fixed charge
Capitalized interes

Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fis
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends
Contractual interest expen
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Interest expense on financing obligatic
Capitalized interes
Interest component of rental expel

Total fixed charges
Dividends on Preferred Stoi

Total fixed charges and Dividends on Preferred Stdc

Ratio of earnings to fixed charge:
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Didends on Preferred Stock

Exhibit 12.1

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2011

$

10,97¢
24,12(
(207)
1,137

36,02¢

22,431
821
291
207
37C

24,12(
1,671

25,79

1.4¢€

1.4C







HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND

PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliat
Fixed charge
Capitalized interes

Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fis
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:
Contractual interest expen
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Interest expense on financing obligatic
Capitalized interes
Interest component of rental expel

Total fixed charges
Distributions on Preferred Uni

Total fixed charges and Distributions on PreferredUnits

Ratio of earnings to fixed charge:
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Dtisbutions on Preferred Units

Exhibit 12.2

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2011

$

10,97¢
24,12(
(207)
1,13

36,021

22,431
821
291
207
37C

24,12(
1,671

25,79

1.4¢€

1.4C







Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report damscontain any untrue statement of a material aadbmit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligltteotircumstances under which such statements meade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlypre

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in :
material respects the financial condition, resaftsperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in
quarterly report

4. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | are responsitde éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act RL
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha

(@) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurds tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatneg to the Registrant, including its consolidhtabsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this quarterly report &ifg preparec

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aride preparation of financi
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissalisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls ammtguures, as of the end of the period covered Isy réport based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change inRegistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the Registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially aéfeé, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte Registrans$ internal contrc
over financial reporting

5. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal rebmver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAGdmmittee of Registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theiajani
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial information; ant

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, thatolwes management or other employees who haverdéfisant role in the Registrargt’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 2, 2011

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report damscontain any untrue statement of a material aadbmit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligltteotircumstances under which such statements meade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlypre

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in :
material respects the financial condition, resaftsperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in
quarterly report

4. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | are responsitde éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act RL
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha

(@) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurds tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatneg to the Registrant, including its consolidhtabsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this quarterly report &ifg preparec

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aride preparation of financi
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissalisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls ammtguures, as of the end of the period covered Isy réport based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change inRegistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the Registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially aéfeé, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte Registrans$ internal contrc
over financial reporting

5. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal rebmver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAGdmmittee of Registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theiajani
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial information; ant

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, thatolwes management or other employees who haverdéfisant role in the Registrargt’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 2, 2011

/s/ TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer




Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersh

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report damscontain any untrue statement of a material aadbmit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligltteotircumstances under which such statements meade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlypre

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in :
material respects the financial condition, resaftsperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in
quarterly report

4. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | are responsitde éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act RL
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha

(@) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurds tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatneg to the Registrant, including its consolidhtabsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this quarterly report &ifg preparec

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aride preparation of financi
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissalisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls ammtguures, as of the end of the period covered Isy réport based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change inRegistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the Registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially aéfeé, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte Registrans$ internal contrc
over financial reporting

5. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal rebmver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAGdmmittee of Registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theiajani
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial information; ant

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, thatolwes management or other employees who haverdéfisant role in the Registrargt’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 2, 2011

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Officer of the
General Partne




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersh

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report damscontain any untrue statement of a material aadbmit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligltteotircumstances under which such statements meade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlypre

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in :
material respects the financial condition, resaftsperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in
quarterly report

4. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | are responsitde éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act RL
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha

(@) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurds tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatneg to the Registrant, including its consolidhtabsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this quarterly report &ifg preparec

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aride preparation of financi
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissalisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls ammtguures, as of the end of the period covered Isy réport based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change inRegistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the Registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially aéfeé, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte Registrans$ internal contrc
over financial reporting

5. The Registrard’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal rebmver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAGdmmittee of Registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theiajani
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial information; ant

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, thatolwes management or other employees who haverdéfisant role in the Registrargt’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 2, 2011

/s/ TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partne




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwede@roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form QCfer the period ended March 31, 2!
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl),Edward J. Fritsch, President and Chief Execl
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC S8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Offic
May 2, 2011




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwede@roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form QCfer the period ended March 31, 2!
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl),Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President and €
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to $9€e Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of
Company.

/s| TERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

May 2, 2011




Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwadglealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth&”) on Form 109 for the perio
ended March 31, 2011 as filed with the Securitie$ Bxchange Commission on the date hereof (the SRgpl, Edward J. Fritsch, President :

Chief Executive Officer of Highwoods Propertiesgc.lngeneral partner of the Operating Partnerstepifg, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350,
adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxleyp2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnershi

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Officer of the
General Partne

May 2, 2011




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwadglealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth&”) on Form 109 for the perio
ended March 31, 2011 as filed with the Securitie$ Bxchange Commission on the date hereof (the 6R§pl, Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vi

President and Chief Financial Officer of Highwodteperties, Inc., general partner of the Opera®agnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.
1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarb@rkesy- Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnershi

/s| TERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officethe
General Partne
May 2, 2011




